ANNOTATIONS AND COMMENTS

18 U.S.C. § 1344 provides:

Whoever knowingly executes, or attempts to execute, a scheme or artifice - -

 to defraud a financial institution; or

 to obtain any of the moneys, funds, credits, assets, securities, or other property owned by, or under the custody or control of, a financial institution, by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises;

shall be fined not more than $1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than  years or both.

See 18 U.S.C. § 20 for an enumeration of the financial institutions covered by § 1344.

An additional element is required under the Apprendi doctrine when the indictment alleges any facts that would result in enhanced penalties under 18 U.S.C. § 2326. See Pattern Instruction 50.1.

Proof that the financial institution is federally chartered or insured is an essential element of the crime, as well as necessary to establish federal jurisdiction. United States v. Scott, 159 F.3d 916, 921 (5th Cir. 1998). Materiality is an essential element of the crime of bank fraud. Neder v. United States, 527 U.S. 1, 25 (1999).

There are two separate offenses possible under Section 1344:  defrauding a financial institution, or  obtaining money or funds from the financial institution by means of material false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises. United States v. Dennis, 237 F.3d 1295, 1303 (11th Cir. 2001) (discussing elements of bank fraud under section 1344); United States v. Mueller, 74 F.3d 1152, 1159 (11th Cir. 1996). In the case of defrauding a financial institution, the Government must establish “that the defendant  intentionally participated in a scheme or artifice to defraud another of money or property; and  that the victim of the scheme or artifice was an insured financial institution.” United States v. Goldsmith, 109 F.3d 714, 715 (11th Cir. 1997). Under the alternative theory, the Government must prove “ that a scheme existed in order to obtain money, funds, or credit in the custody of the federally insured institution;  that the defendant participated in the scheme by means of false pretenses, representations or promises, which were material; and  that the defendant acted knowingly.” Id.  As the Supreme Court explained in Loughrin v. United States, 134 S. Ct. 2384 (2014), to prove a violation under Section 1344(s), the Government need not prove that the defendant intended to defraud a bank.

[bookmark: _GoBack]While materiality is an element of the bank fraud offense under Neder, see also United States v. Williams, 390 F.3d 1319, 1324 (11th Cir. 2004) (same), the Supreme Court has held (pre-Neder) that materiality is not an element of the offense in a prosecution under 18 U.S.C. § 1014, a similar statute which prohibits making a false statement to a federally insured bank or designated financial institution. United States v. Wells, 519 U.S. 482 (1997).
